BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

	OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE


IN THE MATTER OF THE NOTICE OF	)
POTENTIAL VIOLATION OF 26 DEL. ADMIN. C.   )
[bookmark: _GoBack]§ 80001 AND ASSOCIATED CIVIL PENALTIES	)           DOCKET NO. 20-0166  ASSESSED TO PENINSULA OIL CO., INC.	)
(OPENED SEPTEMBER 18, 2019)	)


ORDER NO.  9562

AND NOW, this 18th day of March 2020, the Delaware Public Service Commission (“Commission”) determines and orders the following:
	WHEREAS, the Commission has qualified for federal certification to operate a state pipeline safety compliance program pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 60105(a) and has the authority pursuant to 26 Del. C. § 821 to make and enforce rules required by the federal Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, as amended (49 U.S.C. Chapter 601); and
	WHEREAS, the Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations, 49 C.F.R., Parts 190-193 and 198-199, authorize the Commission to order remedial actions and impose civil penalties where appropriate; and
	WHEREAS, Peninsula Oil Co., Inc. (“Peninsula”) is an “Operator” as set forth in 26 Del. Admin. C. § 8001-1.0 and 26 Del. C. § 802(11) in that Peninsula acts as an operator of a buried pipeline facility used in the transportation of gas, such as propane and natural gas, within the State of Delaware and therefore falls within the Commission’s jurisdiction; and
WHEREAS, Chavis Bianco, a member of the Commission’s Staff (“Staff”), performed a construction inspection on July 17, 2019, of the facilities of Peninsula, the Operator, at 31276 Lakeview Blvd., Lewes De 19958 and 11428 Buckingham Drive, Delmar, DE 19940 (the “Locations”) and noted his findings in a written report (the “Report”), which noted that Peninsula had failed to perform certain inspections or have certain documentation available for inspection, as well as failed to comply with other general requirements of pipeline safety at the Locations; and
WHEREAS, Peninsula’s failure to inspect and test the pressure limiting and regulating stations within 15 months also represents two potential violations of 49 C.F.R. § 192.739(a);[footnoteRef:1] and [1:  49 C.F.R. § 192.739(a) deals with “Pressure limiting and regulating stations:  Inspection and testing” and requires the following:  “Each pressure limiting station, relief device (except rupture discs), and pressure regulating station and its equipment must be subjected at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year, to inspections and tests to determine that it is (1) in good mechanical condition; (2) adequate from the standpoint of capacity and reliability of operation for the service in which it is employed; (3) except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, set to control or relieve at the correct pressure consistent with the pressure limits of § 192.201(a); and (4) properly installed and protected from dirt, liquids, or other conditions that might prevent proper operation.” ] 

	WHEREAS, Peninsula’s failure to perform the above-mentioned tasks also represents one potential violation of 49 C.F.R. § 192.605(a);[footnoteRef:2] and  [2:  49 C.F.R. § 192.605(a) deals with "Procedural manual for operations, maintenance, and emergencies” and states the following: “General. Each operator shall prepare and follow for each pipeline, a manual of written procedures for conducting operations and maintenance activities and for emergency response. For transmission lines, the manual must also include procedures for handling abnormal operations. This manual must be reviewed and updated by the operator at intervals not exceeding 15 months, but at least once each calendar year. This manual must be prepared before operations of a pipeline system commence. Appropriate parts of the manual must be kept at locations where operations and maintenance activities are conducted.”] 

	WHEREAS, Peninsula’s failure to identify an excess flow valve (“EEV”) represents one potential violation of 49 C.F.R § 192.381(c); [footnoteRef:3] and [3:  49 C.F.R § 192.381(c) deals with the requirement that an operator must mark or otherwise identify the presence of an excess flow valve in the service line.] 

	WHEREAS, Peninsula’s failure to locate the point of discharge not less than 5ft (1.5 m) in any direction away from any source of ignition, openings into direct-vent (sealed combustion system) appliances, or mechanical ventilation air intakes represents a violation of NFPA 58 (2004), Section 6.7.4.6: Regulator Installation (Both locations);[footnoteRef:4] and [4:  NFPA 58 (2004), Section 6.7.4.6 deals with the point of discharge and its required location of not less than 5 ft. (1.5 m) in any direction away from any source of ignition, openings into direct-vent (sealed combustion system) appliances, or mechanical ventilation air intakes. ] 

	WHEREAS, Peninsula’s failure to properly install on adjacent piping or on a structure clearly visible nameplate information of a buried container in violation of NFPA 58 (2004), Section 5.2.8.3 (b) & (c) - Container Markings (Both Locations);[footnoteRef:5] C.F.R 192.329;[footnoteRef:6] and [5:  NFPA 58 (2004), Section 5.2.8.3 deals with markings specified for ASME containers shall be on a stainless-steel metal nameplate attached to the container, located to remain visible after the container is installed. Sub-sections (b) &(c) deal with situations where the container is buried or otherwise covered. ]  [6:   49 C.F.R. § 192.329 deals with plastic pipelines installed by trenchless excavation which must comply with the following:(a) Each operator must take practicable steps to provide sufficient clearance for installation and maintenance activities from other underground utilities and/or structures at the time of installation;(b) For each pipeline section, plastic pipe and components that are pulled through the ground must use a weak link, as defined by § 192.3, to ensure the pipeline will not be damaged by any excessive forces during the pulling process] 

WHEREAS, based on Mr. Bianco’s written report and findings, Mr. Wayne B. Ericksen, a member of Staff and the Program Manager of the Pipeline Safety Program for the State of Delaware, sent a written letter of the Notice of Potential Violations (“NOPV”) to Mr. John Willey, II President of Peninsula Jr., Director of Gas Operations and Engineering for Peninsula;[footnoteRef:7] and [7:  A copy of the NOPV and Report are attached to the Proposed Consent Agreement (defined below).] 

WHEREAS, the NOPV indicated that the Commission is authorized by the Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations, 49 C.F.R., Parts 190-193 and 198-199 (the “Regulations”), to order remedial actions and to impose civil penalties. The NOPV further indicated because Peninsula Oil had not recently performed all of the monitoring and testing required, nor had it provided documentation to show that these tasks had been completed in 2019; and
WHEREAS, Staff recommended in the NOPV that the Commission impose an increased civil penalty of $6000.00 for two potential violations of 49 C.F.R. § 192.739(a) due to earlier NOPV fines in 2015 and 2017, an increased civil penalty of $2000.00 for potential violation of 49 C.F.R.§ 192.605(a) due to an earlier NOPV fine in 2017, an increased civil penalty of $2,000.00 for potential violations of 49 C.F.R. § 192.381(c) due to an earlier NOPV fine in 2017, and a civil penalty of $1,000 for one potential violation of NFPA 58 (2004) Section 6.7.4.6 at two locations which sub-totals $2,000, and a civil penalty of $1,000 for one potential violation of NFPA 58 (2004) Section 5.2.8.3 (b) & (c) at two locations which sub-totals $2,000. Thus, the total amount of recommended civil penalties made by Staff was $14,000.00; and 
WHEREAS, Peninsula and Staff have entered into settlement negotiations and agreed to resolve the potential violations and the civil penalties by entering into a consent agreement (the “Proposed Consent Agreement”), which is attached as Attachment “A”;[footnoteRef:8] and [8:  Both Staff and Peninsula agree that the Proposed Consent Agreement is subject to the Commission’s review and final approval.] 

	WHEREAS, Staff and Peninsula submit that resolving this matter through a negotiated compromise without the need for a formal evidentiary hearing or further administrative proceedings serves the public interest, yields an equitable result, and that the civil penalties are within the bounds of reasonableness based on circumstances unique to Peninsula:  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED BY THE AFFIRMATIVE 
VOTE OF NOT FEWER THAN THREE COMMISSIONERS:

	1.	Pursuant to 26 Del. C. § 512(c), the Commission finds that the attached Proposed Consent Agreement is in the public interest for the reasons set forth above and, therefore, approves such agreement in full.
	2.	Pursuant to 26 Del. Admin. C. § 8001-7.1.2, 49 U.S.C. § 60122(a), and subpart B of Part 190 of the Federal Regulations, and as has been agreed to by Peninsula, the Commission assesses a civil penalty against Peninsula in the amount of $14,000, which the Commission acknowledges by this Order has been paid.
3.	The Commission reserves the jurisdiction and authority to enter such further Orders in this matter as may be deemed necessary or proper.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:
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ATTEST:



						
Secretary

PSC Docket No. 20-0166, Order No. 9562 Cont’d


{01542631;v1 }	
{01542631;v1 }	4

ATTACHMENT “A”


Executed January 31, 2020 Proposed Consent Agreement 




